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5 6 DECISMS
?.1. g
BT Miaazeton, Jr., .
v Training Group, APO 500, Z
/0 B.N., San Fremoisco,’ Galifesaia. i |
Dear Mr. Gabat; g

The "3rd Battalion, 5th Regiment, FAIT", a guerrilla
organization under your nominal oontrol, has not been favorably el
considered for recognition by this headquarters. o |

Your attention is invited to Presidentiel Executive Order 2|
“Mn 8, !lr.nlth -:.‘th:‘ Phil! A:::L o'gr of ':!.niah u’
ttached. are reques provisions o
the above mentioned order, bt

Singerely yours,

- DECLASSIFIED ™

|
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HEADQUARTERS % 2 i
UNITED STATES ARKY FORCES WESTERN PACIFIC %
G-3 GUERRILLA AFFATRS SECTION

APO 707
S December 1945

On 2 December 1945, the 5rd Battalion, 5th Reglment, of
FAIT (Araullo) wes contacted at ‘the Wational Unlversity, Manila.
The unlt wes orlginelly sterted by Jose de Guzman, but went to
the control of his exeocutive officer, Falix Gabat after de
Guzman went to Sentlago. Only a battalion cadre of 95 men
(36 officers and 59 enlisted aen) was ever activated. Even
this snall number nesver operated as a unit, Todey 34 of the
men have been recognlzed in the 12th Infantry, Actuslly only
68 men are trying to get recognition.

ien Bonifacio Araullo opened his FATT headquarters he
Paraged thru his friend de Guzman to assign thess men o fhe
PAIT headquarters and as such they were investigabes by Captain
Wortmen, Guerrilla Affaive Seotion, USATG, and & lettew of
non-recognltion was issued.

Captain Gabat thel
fron the contact
uerrilla organt
was told to g

declded that his unit had suffered
1o and claimed that his original

d never Deen investigsted; therefore

his men and they would be contacted,

was found 1]

Itw only with nuch imaginetion could the
group De salled an organization, Their ascomplighments ave
practically nil, none of the men Were full time guesrillas mAd
1% is only the anbitions of one or two of fhe of thosrs tht
forced this contacting.

There does not appear to be any polltical comnections
Within this unit as they have divorced themselyes aluces
entirely from Araullo.

BRecommendations
Hecomnendations

This unit should not be recognized in view of their lack

Of unity and sccomplishments.
CHARLES P, IDDLETON, JR. A
&, Ingf,
an g,
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HISTORY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE 3RD BATTALION, 5TH REGIMENT
FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS

UNDER COLONEL HUGH STRAUGHN, USA, 02515
--000-~

It was in the year 1942 that the Guerrilla Organization,
WFIL-AVERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS" which was the brain child of
Col. Hugh Straughn, USA, 02515 ceme into being. The history of
the Brd Battalion, 5th Regiment, therefore sterted from that
year, it belng one of the offspring of the above mentioned
organization. Its officers and men were inducted and sworned
in for duty accordingly.

The 3rd Battalion, 5th Regiment has been a non-combatant
unit of the Fil-American Irregular Troops, but was to have a
skeleton personnel ready to enlist men in the event it was
necessary to cover the Far Eastern and Sto. Tomas as well as
Victoria Garden Sectors. The primary mission therefore assigned
to it was the gathering of valuable information as to the nu-
merical and material strength of the enemy, "the Japanese brutes",
spotting and reporting the exact location of the troop concen-
trations, ammunition dumps, and warehouses of war materials and
all dther military installations. Aside from intelligence work,
the unit was to be also with ing when the
time came and,if necessary, transportation and food supplies
for the troops. It was also engeged in sabotage and counter pro-
pagenda or morale boosting activities. In carrying out the
morale boosting activities to a successful end it had to spread
the news heard from San Francisco Broadcats regarding the actual
happenings in the Buropean and Pacific Theatres of War. When it
got hold of chocolate bar wrappers with the words "I SHALL REFURN™
by General Douglas MacArthur printed with his picture end that of
the late President Manuel L. Quezon of the Commonwealth of the
Philippines and smoking tobacco with label "SUPPLIED BY UNDERSEA
STORE" thru its Commanding Officer, these were shown to trusted
people to boost their morale and they in turn to people they
know to prove that General Douglas MacArthur and his men of liber-
ation were just around us.

In October, 1942, Capt. Recaredo M. Jhocson was able to
destroy 42 boxes of ammunition in the Macondray Warehouses of the
Japanese Army including some unknown goods inside big boxes. In
December, 1942, Capt. Recaredo M. Jhocson was taken to Fort San-
tlagoby the Japanese Military Police for questioning for being
suspected as guerrilla for the reason that altho he belongs to a
well-to-do family he has been working as a common laborer. He
was released after 24 hours stay at Fort Santiago. He was arrested
for the second time by the Japanese Military Police on January
21, 1943 for being a spy. After having been subjected to the
usual punishment and tortures by the merciless and souless Japs,
on August 18, 1945 exactly 7 months behind bars, Capt. Jhocson
was released looking more dead then alive but full of courage to
continue the work he was sworned in to do. At the time of his
arrest, he was working at the Malaebon Shipbuilding Yard as under-
cover man of this unit,

On August 19, 1943 came the arrest of the Battalion Commander,
Major Jose J. de Guzman and the Regimental Commander, Lt. Col.
Walter Bailey by the Japanese Military Police which was thought
by all concerned that Capt. Recaredo M. Jhocson had squealed.
Members became jittery but nevertheless they did not give up them-
selves believing in the excellent es%ﬁit de corps that existed
in the organization, The arrest of Major de Guzman did not in
anyway stop the work started by him. Inspired by the arrest of
the Battalion Commander, Lt. Eulogio Imbuido started stealing
arms and ammunitions from the General Service Troops barracks of
the Metropolitan Constabulary under the personal supervision of
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Lt. Col. Felix R, Gabat then the Battalion's Executive Officer.
The arms together with the ammunitions were carried and delivered
to fellow Fil-American in Novaliches. It was also thru the ef-
forts of Lt. Imbuido that made several men of the General Service
Troops of the Metropolitan Constabulary ran away to the mountains
with their arms and ammunitions.

The granting of the so-called Philippine Independence by the
Nippon Government was a blessing to many Japanese political pris-
oners because on September 29, 1943, Major Jose J. de Guzman was
one of the many who were released from the Far Eastern University
Concentration Camp prior to the inauguration of the so-called IT
Philippine Republic. Though very much broken in health, being
just a skeleton of his former self, he was still full of high
spirits, He advised his Executive Offiser, Lt., Col. Felix R. Gabat
then Captain to work harder and encourage the boys to do the same.
As usual, reports on activities of the Japanese were being re-
ceived and trensmitted to the General Headguarters thru our cou-
rier. On February 16,1944, Major Jose J. de Guzman was again ar-
rested by the Japanese Military Police with a guerrille liaison
officer who was being sheltered by Colonel de Guzman then Major.
This latest arrest of the Battalion Commander did not at all dis-
courage him and his men but on the contrary it strengthened his
morale and his men behind him. On June 1, 1944, Lt, Col. Jose J.
de Guzman, promoted to that rank effective May 1, 1944 was re-
leased again from Fort Santiasgo and the horrible and heartbreaking
experience he had underwent increased the hatred of his men to-
wards the Japs, and became at once an added incentive to continue
accomplishing their missions; "REVENGE WITH A DO OR DIE ATTITUDE"
became the battle cry of the men.

In the early part of December, 1944, instructions were received
from Col. Jose J. de Guzman (promoted to this rank as of 15th Oc-
tober, 1944) by the Executive Officer Lt. Col. Felix R. Gabat
(promoted to this rank as of October, 1944) to proceed to Pang-
asinan covering San Fabian, Dagupan, Calasiao, to contact other
fellow Fil-American Irregular Troops there or enlist, if necessary,
others that may be interested and organize even small uflit. During
his stay in Pangasinan he sent all available information regarding
the strength and activities of the Japanese Army to Col. J. J. de
Guzman thru a courier, Capt. Toribio R. Perez of the unit. The
latest report was sent on the 22nd of December 1944. During the
first days of January 1945 when bombing attacks by U. S. Army
Dplanes became intensive, landing was anticipated. Nava) bombard-
ments and artillery fire followed the air attacks., Shefling of
towns along the coast of Lingayen Gulf continued for four days. It
was regrettable that we were devoid of a radio transmitter which
could have stopped the unnecessary shelling as the Japanese did
not have any defences in the towns of San Fabian, Mangaldan, Dag-
upan and Calasiaoc. On the night before the Americans landed in
Dagupan, some of Fil-American boys exchangeffire with Japanese
spies in Barrio Caranglaan of Calasiao which caused the wholesale
retreat of the Japanese from Dagupan. Because of this incident,
the landing party did not find any opposition when they arrived at
Dagupen. Corporal Epifanio de Armas (FAIT) was responsible in pre-
venting the Japs from using Locomotive Engine No. 171 at Dagupan
on the eve of the landing by draining the said engine of oil. Lt.
Jose R.cGabat of the unit on the day of the American landing was
credited for the wholesale killing of 11 Japanese soldiers in the
Barrio of Bantayan, Mangalden with the aid of American forces when
he gulded to a foxhole where the Japs were staying.

When the liberation army of Gen. Douglas MacArthur landed in
Pengesinan on January 9, 1945, officers and men of the unit joined
with other brother Fil-American and presented themselves for duty.
It was a shame however that they were not immediately attached.
Instead they were advised to wait for Major General Basilio Valdes
who they sald will in due time organize the Philippine Army. With-
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out losing enthusiasm ana courage, since they cannot do any fight-

With bare hands, on January 14, 1945 Lt. Col. Felix R. Gabat
went to San Fabian to Trepresent the unit and ask for attachement
from proper Army authorities. On the 21st day of January, 1945, he
was appointed by the Provost Marshal's Office thru Lt. Col. John
V. liueller as Commanding Officer of the Beach Patrol with his det-
achment of USAFFE and FAIT men. The rest of his men who were not
accomodated served as civilian employees of the U, S. Army. Agong
those taken in as civilian employees are the following: Capt. Aga-
pito J. de Guzman, Supervisory clerk of Cargo Control Section, rort
Command, Base M, Capt. Eduardo Garcia, Judge Advocate and CIC Sec—
tion, Lts. Panfilo Pinlac, Lorenzo Pinlac, Jose R. Gabat, Emilio
Garcia, Provost Marshal's Office.

Later the beach patrol organized by Lt. Col. Felix R. Gabat
were attached to the 577th Ord. Ammunition Depot under Capt. W.
Nickels of this outfit performing M. P, duties. This eventually led
to attachment of Fil-American Irregular Troops to U. S. Army M. P.
Companies. Those serving as civilian personnel of the U. S. Army
resigned eventually thinking that they could be inducted in the re-
gular army which was really their cherished dreams. They came to
Menila after the City was liberated to contact the General Head-
quarters and sought advise as to their real status. Up to this
writing however, they are still dreaming and hoping without losing
any courage to serve their country as soldiers and help drive from
the shore of the Philipnines the barbarous Japs to the last men
having as their aspirations to go with the Invasion Forces to Tokio.

Captain Charles W. Armstrong, Jr., (formerly S-2 of this Com-
mend now Major in the P, Q. 0. G.) was also given a mission to
organize in Batanges and Laguna in December, 1944, What success he
has made in this mission will be treated by the former ¢. 0. in
his personal report.

This history will not be complete without recording commendable
end distinguished acts of certain members of this unit. Among which
are as follows:

In the morning of the second fortnight of January, 1945 when
spearhead of the American liberation forces was at Barrio Duapay,
San Cerlos, Pangasinan, Capt., Toribio R. Perez of this unit reported
to soldiers on patrol along the vicinity that in a site around two
hundred yards from the road in the Barrio of Palma there were about
100 Japanese soldiers fully packed and resting under bamboo trees
near the Basista Church Cemetery presumably on their way to join
their comrade hiding in the hilly mountains of Malasigui. The
Commanding Officer whose name was not noted and could not therefore
be remembered by Capt. Perez led his men and attacked the place.
Gxchange of fires lasted for almost an hour but finally the Japs
retreated leaving behind them 5 dead and their equipment.

Contact was made with Sto. Tomas internees by Capt. Charles W.
Armstrong, Jr, (formerly S-2 of this command since February, 1944,
later commissioned as Major by P. Q. 0. G.) through Nrs. Juan Men-
carini from whom was obtained a complete list of those interned
Americans. Some members of this unit furnished also food and clobh-
ing to the American internees in Sto. Tomas. This report would not
be complete without mentioning the commendable and patriotic atts
of Mrs, Mencarini, altho not an American nor a Filipino national,
which led to her arrest including her innocent husband. Both were
known to have been killed by the Japanese.(see Incls. 3 and 4). It
seems proper that this be acknowledged by helping the orphans.

It is also worthy to mention here that Mr. M, Goldenberg, a
well known businessm@n and presently Grand Master of Masons in the
Philippines,aided in a great measure the cause of Guerrilla activ-
ities by contributing funds, clothing and medicine, bandages and
gau}e. He also helped in like manner the Guerrilla Prisoners in
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jiontinelupe. It 1s also of comon knowledge to many that he haa
Zelped in the same manmer tho Ameriesn Smfurioe Ll Sto. Tomas
Ihru Mrs. Menoarini. Tais should in some measure, be also ac-
knowledged by the authorities comcerned

Other commendable acts will be treated in another Teport as
data on hand ere inoomplets. Dstails Gre expececy moin other.
members still attached to U. 8. ATmy unibe.

Inclosed are sous of the persomal activities of officers
and men under tais command as Tollows:

Exhibits 1.

T4 bi
Eduardo Garcie
Lt. Euloglo Imbuido
P Perje\‘,uo/ﬁlunday

Attest:

djutant Ge

SSIFIED
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FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS UNDER
COL. RUGH STRAUGHN, U.S.A, No.02515
SOUTH CENTRAL LUZON
3rd Battalion, 5th Regiment

LIST OF OFFICERS AND ENLISTED MEN RECOGNIZED
AND CARRIED IN THE ROSTER OF THE 12th INF.REGT.

NAME RANK
1. Agapito J. de Guz Captain
2. Toribio &, Perez Cﬁptain
3. Lorenzo B. Pinlac 1" Lieut.
4, Bpilio J. CGarcia 1" Lieut,
5. Jose R. Gabat Lieut.
6. Vitalino Q. Dismaya 1st Lieut.
7. Macario Wiranda~ 2nd Lieut.
Loreto R. Gabat /~ 2nd Liew
Pedro C., Perez 2nd Lieut.
Jose Sevidale~" ' 1/5gt
Francisco Joves/ Sgt
Juan F. Carino/ D/Sgt
Pablo Gabrillo/” D/Sgt
Miguel Roca Fajardo” Sgt
Miguel Cacayuran~” pfe
Temoteo Ibasan~" Pfc
Federico, Sevidal”” PVt
Eduardo ‘umbaga PVt
Florentino Quirimit” PVt
Felipe “ostales Pvt
Wiguel Solis Pvt
Graciano_Soriano Pvt
Antonio Tumbaga / PVt
Bernardo Gutierez Pvt
. Crisostomo Gaytos Pvt
Juan Narraval PVt
Geronimo Gutierez Pvt
Castolo Cepre Pvt
Antonio Gutierez PVt
Catalino Ch. Guitarte Captain (lickinley Div. Roster)
Charles Armstrong, Jr.  Captain (PQOG - Roster)

(121st Inf. Cp-Spenser)

(Malaeanan LAy
(BA{ Gen.Sovw. #FB)

Cirilo Belen
. Victor V:Gomez
EAuavrdo M .Gereia

LT, COL. FAIT
C0, 3rd Bn, 5th Regt
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FIL-AMERICAN ISREGULAR TROOPS 5

,'/ﬂ/ COL. HUGE STRAVGHY, V.54 i, lo.025l5

VW /‘@/ rd Battalion 5th Regiment
¥ BOS: OERE AND

HANE ! INDUCTION ' RAWK smx-w_'am

Jose J. do Guzman. Lt Col. §~ 1-¢4 ' Cols 10-15-44 |
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T WO T TENTON T PONTOR. T PEMTON |
NANME * TNDUCTION ' RAWK = pavE * 2 .
71. Florentino Suirimit ! 4-10 o : ' ' |
Costales 1420048 0 opet : ' !
P 420048 0 e . . H
102 bt : . .
Vi o | : H
by S 44 . . :
taioas oot ' : '
82643 1 Pt . ' '
. »BERetd > Bb 0 . :
¥ e B : h '
. Agustin Valintin- ! 2- 3 B ey - iy : '
2, Caren Sappo] 1223048 v opve
30 Perfecto faldes 126344 0 pve ! ' '
4, Maurc de Guzman 1 2-14-44 Pyt & :
7. Srispulo o ©33448 v P 0 y g
86, Pablo do Lovas 12%6cas 1Pt H
67, Nicanor Caleon ! 2-14-44 Pyt ¥ ¥ 4
* Eernin Calopas 1 2-14-a8 ot . : 2
- “olomon Monbay— ' 225,44 Pyt ' 5
© Jose ediile 122058 1 vt : '
1, Jusn Naraval ! 4-10-44 Pyt a *
2, Geronimo Gutierez ! 4-10-44 Pyt : *
3. Castolo Copre e S '
Antonio Cutierez ! 4-10-44 Pyt o
 Eric Neals 1 2e20-45 “ivilian Lia: ;( L]
FECIX R. OABAT
Lg. Golénel, PATT
(“ormerly Executive officer)
X Commanding Officor
Attost: I

Poruer) in Cossand

COL. /7088 J. DE GUZUAN
THE ADJUTANE GEWERAL, FALT

MyBEHONZE 2rib
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ICAN TRREGULER TROOES
COL., )!U(rh STRAUGHN, U, S. A. O, 02515)
ALION, 5th REGIMENT

N

HOSTER OF OFFICERSAND ENLISTED MEN FORMERLY OF THIS BATTALION
* SHOWING PRESENT RANKS/GRADES AND ACTUAL ASSIGNMENT.

v .
ITEK HAME
$ 1, JOSE J. DB GWZMAN

2.
3.
4.
5.
6o
7.
8.

9, CHARLE

10.
s
12,
15,
12,
16,
16.
TS
18,
19.
20,
21.

FELIX R.

CAREDO 1, Jﬂocsom
CATALTNO TINTO
PEDRO SANTOS
EMETERIO BALBOA
GUILLERKO ARCEBAL
CATALINO GUITARTE
S ARUSTRONG
VICTORIANO GALANG
HIPOLITO 4 SISON
CIRILO BELEN
AGAPITO DE GUZA..AN
JUAN D, CAOIL:
FILENON B. Pmuc
VICTOR V. GOMEZ
EDUARDO 1. GARCIA
T0RIBIO R. PEREZ
ARTURO GUITARTE
ROMEO SANTO:
JUAN HERMAND]
GREGORIO TRINIDAD

+ LORENZO J. PmLac

JOEN T
JOSE sz
EMELIO J. GARCIA
JOSE R. GABAT
VITALIANO Q. DISHAYA
MACARIO MIRANDA
EULOGIO LBUIDO
CATALINO FABIA
VICENTE SAGULILI
LOREIO R, GABAT
BENIGHO ESTACIO
DRO C, PEREZ
QUIRINO FORTALEZA
ANTONIO R, GABAT
PEDRO C. SANTOS
MARCELO RIVERA
VALERIANO BERIABE
PERPETUO ULANDAY
PASLO TALAMPAS
GERARDO BIALA
TEODORO ONYATE

. VICENTE G. CAOILI

JOSE G, SIVEDAL
TOMAS LUCIANO
BRIGCIO KEYES

PRESENT RANK SIATUS
COLONEL
LT, COL.
HAJOR

USAFFE-US
USAFTE-PA
PA-Res

USAFFE-PA

AIR USAFFE-PA
CAPTATN USAFFE-PA
CAPTATN
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut,
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.
1st Lieut.

USAFFE~PA

USAFFE-PA

DECLASSIFIED
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REMARKS OR PRESENT ASSIGHL

Adjutent General
Asst. Adj. General
On duty -1

On duby AGD
Unassigned, ettached

Press Relations Officer GHQ
Liaison Officer GHQ
Attached to FQOG

Returned to PA

Personnel Adjutant GHQ
Unassigned, attached GHY
Attached to 12 Inf.: cdmley

Postel Sec, AGD
Persomel, JAG Degt. G,w

GHY
Persomnel, G-3 GG

On duty Corps of Bngrs. GhJ
Unassigned, atboched to GHY
Unassigned, atteched o  GHQ

Attached to 12 Inf.lcKinley
Unassigned,
TUnassigned, 1
Attached to 12 Inf, loKinley
Attached %o 12 Inf. loKinley
Aittached to 12 Inf. licKinley

Unassigned, attached to GHQ
Unassigned, attached to  GHY
Unassigned, attached to GHY
Unassigned, abtached to  GHQ
Inspector General Dept.  GHQ
Unassigned, atteched to @Y
Unassigned, attached to  GHQ
Unassigned, attached to GHQ
Persomnel, AGD GHQ.
Hedical Dept. GHO.
Quertermaster Service  GHY
Finance Departument GHQ
P, li, G, Porsonnel GHQ.
Finence Department GHQ
ledicel Department GHQ

Personnel, JAG Dept. GHQ
Persomnel, Chief of Staff GHY

Personnel, AGD GHQ
Cuartermaster Service GHQ

Bersamol, AGD Gy




49, JULIAN RIVERA
0. JUAN SUDDUL
51, BASILIO CASTRO
52, FRANCISCO JOVES
53, GREGORIO GERNA
54, JUAN F, CARINO
55, PABLO GABRILLO
56. RAYMUNDO A. REYES
57, RICARDO DUCO
58, VICENIE VIZCAYA
59, VICENTE MANGONON
60, MIGUEL ROCA FAJARDO
61, LUIS SABANGAN
62, CESAR CAOILI
63, EPIFARIO DE ARMAS
64, CIPRIANO CRUZ
65, SABINIANO ORDONES
66, BENJAMIN RAMOS
67 MIGUEL GACAYURAN
68, TEUOTEO IBASAN
69, FEDERICO SEVIDAL
70, EDUARDO TUMBAGA
71, FLORENTINO QUIRIMIT
72. FELIPE COSTALES
75, MIGUEL SOLIS
74, GRACIANO SORIANO
75, ANTONIO TUMBAGA
76, BERNARDO GUTIEREZ
77. CRISOSTOMO GAYTOS
78, DOMINGO DE VERA
79, PETRONILO ONYATE
80. VICENTE VELES
81, AGUSTIN VALINTIN
82. CAREM SAPPOL
83, PERFECTO VALDEZ
MAURO DE GUZMAN
CRISPOLO SICAT
PABLO LE LOYAS
TICANOR CALEON
o FERMIN CALOPAS
SOLOMON MOMBAY
JOSE SEDILLO
JUAN NARAVAL
GERONIMO GUTIEREZ
CASTOLO CEPRE
NIO GUTIEREZ
95, ERIC NEALE

Adjutant

< . 7
(Formerly Lx
‘nding Officer

JOSE J. DE GUZMAN
Colonel, AGS, P

Persomnel, AGD

Unossigned, attached o Gﬂg
Persomnel, G-4

Psrsonnel. meee Dept. G‘H.g
Personn

Inspectur e Dept, GBQ
Unassigned, stbached to GHY
6-3 G

Persommel, Finence Dept. GHQ
Unassigned, attached to GilQ
Unassigned, attached to GHQ
AGD. GHQ

Personnely AGD GHQ
Personnel, AGD aHy
Persomnel, PMG GHQ
Personnel, CE GHQ
Persomnel, MD GHQ
Personnel, D GHQ

Unassigned, attached to GHY
Unassigned, attached to GBQ
Persomel, AGD

Persomel, QUS GHQ
Persomnel, OMS GHY
Unassigned, attached to GHQ
Fergomel, Corps of Engr.Gl)
Persomel, AGD GHQ
Persomel, AGD GH.
Unassigned, attached to GHO
Unassigned, attached to Gm
-3, Persomnel

Unassigned, attached & GHQ
Unassigned, attached Yo am
Unasgigned, attached to GHY
Unassigned, attached to GHY
Persomsl,Chaplein Ser. GHQ
Persomel, Finance Dept. GHY
Unassigned, attached to GH
Unassigned, attached to GHY
Persomel, QIS GH
Unassigned, attached to GHY
Unassigned, attached to GH)
Unassigned, attached to GHY
Personnel, Finance Dept. GHO

ervice
Persomnel, PG Dept. GHQ
Persomel, PUG D Y
Unassigned, attached to GHJ

7
ive Officer)

! " DECLASSIFIED ™
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United States Yorcew in the Piilippines
FIL-MCRIGY TERSGUTAR TROOPS
Manila

fugast 15, 1945

SUBTN0T:s Addends to repors of letivisiaes
5rd Battalion, 5th Regiment.

0 +  The Gommanding Cenersl, USAVYS,
U2G, Cuerrills i7ialrs Seotion,
ARO 01,

1. Reports of activitles of the fnlla,'d"z; officers, which were
insdvertensly omibtad in previous veporss, ave submivbed hevewith Zor
information and records

Exkibit "AY - Major Pedro Santos
» “B¥ . Major B. Balboa
¥ "o - Major Cuillermo Arvcebal
o UD® o Qap. Gatalino Ch. Cultarte
. 4 "B - Iisuts 4. Os G uiterso
2 M. 0 Romeo 0. Sentos.

2. Roforence Pev. 5, Persousl Listoxy and ackivities of Gol.
Jose Je d¢ Guzmane I% mist be mentioned that Gol, urdo del xrio
Denclang basrs witness b0 the 2ach theb es early es October, 1942, tnd
thovessior, wo have supplied funds, meéicins, £00d suppliss, atos b0 the
underground movemens $o whioh the sald Col. TANKIANG was very mich in-
Yoveabad and who was ths vory £irsb pevson spproached by. the undersigmed
in view of the Lxportence of needed:Zinance bo cerzy oub successfully ony
movemyn’ of he nature madortaltens COol. Dancling wes Gppointed by mo as
Gapbain, and later confArmed by the Regliental Organizer at & meoting hald
80iisting in Maroh, 1945, at which meating seld Col. Taieleng ves ulso pre-
senbs A% the 9ald meebing plens of organlabion were £omulebod

Procsdurs and the methods o Do employec in bhe worls b0 b Undexbéicens

his 2eferencs %o Ool. Tauclang 18 medo #0 do Justlos o & man
hos business stending 1s 50 well known 8nd nsad mob bs- IRoested Ln
BUGH &n underaiking, nevertheless, prefarvod bo TAsk sverybiing ho bed
4ud somehow 304ged the Preasuze-of Opening his businesss Thls 15 alse
made 02 reoom P wlaw. 024 thonfadss Yast Oola Tameien, W39 assizned as
Roglnsatal Riuauge 0950ex Whons Ry giaaaanic sppodntmont. wes ooneirsad
y s 837G 57920 Whiioh ho showld Do oarrded
00 the Roater §2-ike Regtuuital S4a22 diopan In-order. 1o. tenoy wrr cio
pomsationa; Royevezs: it Resluontel, Gomatder te this weisses teatastiy
hanos, ¥ho)Wgen0e of iha. Taglrontl. sYats sastie. >
I ha¥o knovledge-0f the. fack thah Gol
out udszeennd novanant inanolaily, not F iy
3 8. WL, In viewos this, aitho sesiors :
Tetods-icnowm Yo ilio wndezground movenant, e ey to 52‘22513“?3-"?;@ «d
2 Ro7tharaty lensened 40 oans dugroo s Taaks of epenpe, " T

Dauslang Tas supported
our Reginent but otbex

% Tor the activities and fina
i3 FAIT. by Col. Tensieng, ho was mad.
FAIT-GHQ, and promoted by 1%s Comdge

Bolul and materdal alds rendared to
tha Chief Rinance 02floer af 26
Ofloer, %9 fhe sald rauk,

S+ It mast be mentionsd finally diat ihe Yrd Batalion bas been
very actlve in &1l phases of the wnderground movement &s my be gleausd
£rom the various reports of aciiviiles submltted, I%a offirexs and men
Dave been very helpful in many wags 1a he attelmment of tho Gomaon 0b-
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T deseat st 411 Yagaraless of goisequinoss® -
s a8 e1araone 64 e SEFioens ek oo ot viAS e

Soms of Khs man 66 40 be somasded Zox Lhets
4n sending erns £33 esmustions $1s Uiy oen Lsg“¥rety nds o fo the
units in the mountaiss, ss welliss supplying. 7
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RIOAN TRREGULARS
(Bouth Gemban T Rseig
Headquarters 5rd.En, Sti, B

July 30, 1945
Tor Col. Felix £, Gavat, C.0.

Subjects My activities before an during the Japancse
occupation,

Before the war I was o sudon: Gnamtont Tnge, ot
{he Manaon Tniversicyand als 7.0, oad:
institublon, T worked Guring. tho aay m
f.Lsr'n Laotory and’studied at night, After
war T prosented myself o the somandans
= univarslty Tor sctive duty, was taken n and
611 banted,

‘the Tapanses euc\wisﬂ the olty, I spread ne

n trpeeritten o a o0, nesgibors whei1 | vas Frdg
Droashad by L5, ipe'n on sy 5o, 1045 0 Jotn pi
o, sweriite urg-nuannn. oo speda 60 1043 Pty
calied in our comande:

15" Kmowing poc
helped me procure medio na, clothes, ams, nmunit:lnn,
o be take:

Tadfos, wires, sto, o E
Tune &, mz, “with 10 btier men t Bas taken on by
Lt. Zorry Mevoso, séoond in comand to raid She amosy

£ s Unlon Goliega, Nantie, e sos toen it od riflea
balel, cantoens, blafkote, eto., Vaich Wy eck 1 i
nk of the Fasls aiver maar Wabivack to be dslivered
= snather party o dntipoio, Rizal,
Gudard SEELL T wes caveint
o s 1 T by the ehiia Foliee witn right
gealed rifle on my father's Jitney which I was bo Gei-
{ere With ey fathor and thres other sompant

s guilty, provided he was only ohansor vith fidgn
Foscaneton ob fire. atas, fo meen s ergrd ¥
Folice and Jap F records.
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sfter aseuring them that I w oltizen,
surrendor Tomaly at lalacetion Feiace sor

‘comma then Najor
holoed hin in procuring surpiies
wor:
again visited by Jap iPs
Wee told to report to their headquarters at Vaowwack..
&8 Zavorable iipression o that they lot me go the

S ontaion 18, 100t T i ek thru released

prisoners that I was wanted by the Wackwack HPs. S

By father kept me in our Hanila Office. On JaniiS, 1945
: orfice,

searched my houss thres times After maicing’ sure
e o1 umm-, Foltos had ;m Thair ecntium T
an) miary 28,

et

e Tte
Fll-Anerican Lrrogular
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FIL- 4 IRRLGULARS
(South Cengral Luzon Forces)
Hecdquerters 5rd. Bn,, 5th Regt.

11 May 1945

Report
The Cormending 0

fficer

In Fe year, I recsived my
ment as a comniss won»d “otric T, Pirt Licutenent,
3rd. Bn., 5th R f the Ii
for south cemtrsl Lizon, for intel
time to time as directed to me, T
who is o Ceptain of i

B o
-4 in the
sguler Torces

work, oo, in the
bu’ldln of transuitter for commmications, for & uait de-
the south. lmtq‘lall“ helping then with redio
ry £ or ocoymunicntion var!
d 1 the City o 1e
Anything uemxeu in the ci by w

Noveuber, 1944, I w:s sent for by the su-
G rrilla units in the north, vhose

- liajor andersom.

secretary and radio

5 helrd about we anong
hat being already &

rejected ft, though

preme commends:
headquertoss vh

riosu,
heve helped them naterially,

4% present I au working
signel Corps, 1
Stetion) under 1at Lts Jomn Jl‘lhdA, J
slectrician.

" volm tarily with the U. 8. Army
S > Radio
as Tadio

2o /, :
Loien, Gadet - Reserve Of-
s Training Corp.
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0 VelOl £ VAT Gohaiil;

AMTURO G. GULFANEL hes bee in ny employ, rmall Ships

Hadio seotion, us e Rello Sicctriotan. although Ihave kom,  §

Bin only @ short tins, he has displeyed exoollant skill in the

use of toole and excellent vorking kmovledss of Railio theory

J9 Bunigg, T,
Ist. Lt., Sig. G.
o016







DECLASSIFIED
Autonty ADTELTS




TULREA Aoy

W ISy IOIa




DECLASSIFIED.
Authory WDTEETS




DiCLASITED
Auhonty MDTBETS




| oRcLaee
Aunonty OTEDTS

ghe bridges in the Cliy have bec

,mm "k draiaited as, Juan
s candere:

i Tuna beidge,
« bridge betw v

{over)
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Jones, Sta. Oruz, Murora Ave.,

I 2
Hidaleo, Legarda, Rizal Ave. corner 62 Ascar-
and nany otiler glaces.

8- Anong the buttding bulit with ox-hateu sre
Post 0ffice, Clty Hall, Finance and iie Le
istative bulldings.

- Regarding ay Yast aselgnment Trom you, yester-

day, I have found fros Te'lsble sourcés that
mithin said oxg sotsaiion, seny ioine sayipr-
ees are probiape, 1n the
said plac,
suo
It e better that everyone of them be investi-
gated aecrety in onder o avoid sazionsee acts
on the part of said employees.
— Zascuat st.
an, Greater'Manila

igucges: Tag
‘Tegatoe, Giineds 4 Tisaan
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e o OF INPORUATION (VERGAL AND WRITTEN) o
EEADQUARTERS, o7 TS AABRION INRRGULAR TR0OPS, -

OUTR CENTRAL
m..’ll).. S5TH RBGT. , ml
mnm eﬁa—m\._

m,.m .

3 " Tow
z-r?pc ut ive 0f e
(1)°Five Japanese n-m: Dorth are sost
Guir n hough o
(mets. Actuslly » gouple
fetive bonas ;‘mnq.nuw object st &
8 off oest or TopEsinin.  That wen sbout
the sesordue 2 2ept. 1983, (2] 4rooh sovomente of
Japancee soldiers l.hﬂrx were intenaified. their
Rranet e deieived To bl Sopsseiton xith thoir
Iofec ot erriscn ente..(3) s

on, -m.n
"elon, wes beiag umepsatin by Jape:

oo aovasber, 1943, throueh cumner £
folesers on foreed s ove proceeai Nortnera
ern part of o e ciaen iy Wy of san,
Lisble taforamtion
pALL S0 m lo-ll)u For s...:

Phi;
1d- e it mn
ostabulery aer ' then, oxespt ihe Sftiere

Rebruery, 1944, through rummer ------(1) Zspsnese
5 Stationed at Biaalonan, Pangsinen, wers sugbenied.
lqu:sth pr Anits eselened in idstemZangssten “f re-
r Officer Biages in
ns

p.m. “he conatrastime of p)ubnnl
* sued Fiver vo

nFebfan: puia-
Like biabope and see
"ot oo sad by evizions drafted to forced labor.

June, 1944, = (1) 1

Rnve ‘beta sacuoving Sereiogie nu:u i Sank- sbisn' s
1ords Rosario.  Clvillens in Gan febis, ¢ Deen-restultea
B work on piilboxes ans ber in the hille.

1ibones o, 9f Lignt metertel 11ke a me. end_cezous
Free -m pum 13ke oamote, corn, casca on,

top. (@) oty n." ‘Seon coainy.

Union, ‘to Ban Septans Beasserors Db tuy tom-th

204 Vigetarion o Practically nosinel pri Givitiens hia
their product

% \
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» 5. Jucy, 1944, through runner ------- (1) Civilan
retruited by Japanese of ficere say that a tunnel wae being
copstructed in the mounteins of fossrio, Le Union, that Kails
removed from the former MRR line from San Fsbien to Binday
‘have been trensported there. HKrom this,ex-soldlers of the
Philiopine Army working as lsborers sey thet big guns will
be set up in the tunnel. (2) A net-work of trails wee belng
mede in the mountains of Sen Fsbian end Foserio up to Sison,
then to the mountain provinces. (3) Army clothing items were
being loaded in trucke from Damortie and brought to Rosario
in the supply dumps placed or set up there. Food supplies
and smmunitione were sls o being stored in Rosario.

6. September, 1944, through runner -- About twenty
(20) Japenese freighters appeared in Lingeyen Gulf during
the first two (2) wecks of September, 1944, apparently evad-
ing some submerged craft outelde the gulf. They sppeared
in the afternoon, sometimes 8 or 6 in nuamber, and then leave
early in the following morning at about 2:00 o'cleck.

7. October, 1944, through runaer ----)1) Jepenese

planes presumably twin-engined medlum bombers, were regu-
1 arly flying over San Fabian from north to south direction, most-
1y in groups of nine (9) to eighten (18). Eeldoz heve plancs

of this type been seen flying the opppsite direction. (2) Two
Japenese medium bombers mede forded landings at the deascn 1n

Sen Feblan, spperently due to lsck of gasoline.

-of0-

I certify that t he above in formations were transmitted
by me to the Executive Officer,’ R. Gabet, Iaf. 3rd
Bn., S5th Regt. , Fil- Americsn Irregulars, Southern-Central
Luzon Foreee, during the periods indicsted, after my appoint-
ment es Inteleligenee Offier on or about August 22, 1943.

(56D) EDUARDO M. GARCIA
| Captein; Infantyy
TRUE COBf: 1\ s
Jj‘or.!nr.
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1. Hleh Sohool Graduate -Jose Riz-1 College
2, Bachelor of Coamercial goience- Jose Rizel College

3. Cashier and Accountant-1920/1881 with Getz Bros. & Go.
4. Salesuen-1921/1929 with Getz Bros. & Ce.

5. Sales manager-1930/1935 with Insular Suger Refining Cor.
e e " 1935/1087 with Dy Buncio & Co.

" " 1957/108 with 7. H. Stevens & Go.
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April 1, 104

To: - The Comanaing 0fficer
IU-merions Irvegular Teoops
South Gentoal Luson, Sed o

Subjegt:- Sumary of my sotivities in euerilla work, as reported

u from tine to time alhme Jure 14, 195,

e my ocomnection with 8rd Bat,, 5th Regiment,

»ixd to help the guerillas ik all their \mdsr‘takinz’t.
ive Voluntary contrdbution fov thoir
To than and in many instences

have. Sineps i

I B stocted seorto
a8 2 had soauized fov Fevoire
Rt S ranend T z

2, Jumg, Loag, whon 1 wes amointed Captata, s Intell-

oa
gence Officsr (SO Ret sl to iatol{gonos axa’a
work, I vas 0 Ioiow Iir, Vatanabe,

until now

uard and vere brought to the Japanese garrison
oy are misaing,ant T Drasuied Enay wor ione el

| v
| Autonty RNDOBSTS
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Few days after these operatives were arrested, military police
called at my house,fized bayonet,and advised my familly that
I was wanted for being a guerllla, but fortunately I was out
at that time, When I came home I immediately packed up and
left my familly and proceeded to Mount Arayat where I stayed
until the Amppicans landed in Pangasinan. Vhile in Mount
Arayat I helped the guerillas there to help the American
aviators who might have mmeded our assistance in looking for
Japanese Military Objectéves. In one imstance I helped the
guerillas in the mountain to take care of the an aviator
who happened to have bailed mear the mou.ntain and” T understand
said aviator is mow back in his unit.

Other activities, which I performed and of "hlch I could
recollect, were vsrbally submitted to Lt. Col.

2 : 3T
o e s E A

CATALINO TINIO

not

Qa1

TTLRITEN Avonny i



31 January 1945

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: L4

This certifies that Capt. FELIX R. GABAT, PA. has
worked under me as Commanding Officer of the PBP (Pilipino
Beach Patrol) and have known him to be efficient worker
and dependable.

His character is exemplary beyond compare.

Signed:
R. L. GRIFFIN
Capt. CMP
Provost Mershal Office
Base "M" APo No.70
TRUE Y2 ~

TR
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HEADQUARTERS
577th ORD. AMM, CO.
BASE "M" APO NO:%O

1lst. Feb, 1945
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This certifies that Capt. Felix R. Gabat, (PA) is
the Commanding Officer of the EX-USAFFE DETACHMEM attached
to the 577th ORD. AMMUNITION COMPANY, BASK "M" APO<NO. 70
at Rabon, La Union.

Any help extended to him shall be highly appreciated
by the undersigned.
Signed:
WILLIAM E. NICKELS

CAPT. ORD, DEPT.
COMMANDING

TRUE COPY:

! Authonty WDIESTS



172 FINANCE DISBURSING SECTION
FINANCE OFFICE, LUBSEC, APO 358

7th March 1945
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This certifies that FELIX R, GABAT, Capt.
is attached for duty in the Finance office,

Signed:
A. H. MILLER
LT, COL. FD.
FINANCE OFFICER
/

TRUE COPY: /
DECLASSIFIED

| Authonty wm@mﬂ

Inf, PA.
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MY ACTTVITIES BEFORE DECEMBER 8, 1941

I- EDUCATION:

1929 - (A,A.) Associate in Arts, NationalUniversity.

1931 - (B.S.E) Bachelor of Science in Education,
National University.

1983 - (A.B.) Bachelor of Arts, National University.

1938 - Advertising - P,

ge Davis School of Advertising,
Chicago, Ill. U.S.A. (ICS).
II- EXPERIENCE:

1, Newspaperman "THE TRIBUNE" 4 yrs.

2. Member of the Faculty, National University, Night
Department .

3. News Eqitor, "THE COMMERCE" official organ of the
Philippine Chamber of Commerce.

4, Advertising Manager of different magazines edited
in English and Spanish.

III- NOV. 11, 1938:

Commissioned 1st Lieutenant in the Philippine Army
Reserve Corps and worked as Intelligence under Lt. Col.
Valeriano Sison, Chief G-1 (GHQ) PA, - glving informe-
tions as to what the Japanese particularly at the Osaka
Boeki Kaisha, Inc., and other places are doing, On -
several occasions, I have reported to D-I (Department
of Investigationg)suspgcious movements of the Japanese
before the outbreak of the War. Out of the many things
I have reported to Lt. Col. Sison was what one Japanese
named Yoshioka whom I have known to be a Captain in the
Japanese Army said, that someday, the Japanese flag will

be seen flying on top of the residence of the American
High Commissioner at the Luneta.

IV- JAN. 10, 1940:

Called to active duty in the Philippine Army,
V- JULY 16, 1941:

Called to General Mobilization Center at Manaoag, Pang,
VI- AUG. 1, 1941:

Inducted into the USAFFE, Assigned to Hq. & Hf Serv. Co.
as Company Commander, Later assigned to the Regimental

Headquarters as S-2; fought &nd promoted to Captain one
month before the fall of Batéen.

VIL- APRIL 9, 1942:

Captured in Bataan and concentrated at Capaz, Tarlac,
VIILI- JULY 1, 1942:

s;Released from the Concentration Camp for being sick,
IX- JULY 13, 1943:

Joined the FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS under Col.
Hugh Straughn, U.S.A.

/

i K
. COL. AGD,FATT
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UNITED STATES FORCES IN THE PHILIPPINES
FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS
IN THE FIELD
==000=~

SUMMARY REPORT OF MY ACTIVITIES
DURING THE JAPANESE OGUCUPATION

On July 13, 1943, I was commissioned Captain by Major
Jose J, de Guzman in the 3rd Battalion, 5th Regiment, of the
Guerrilla Force "FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS" under Colonel
Hugh Straughn, USA, as Executive and at the same time Tntelli-
gence Officer, The 3rd Battalion was given specific instruct-
ions to spy on the enemy activities, sabotage work, and morale
boosting. Although my commission in the Guerrilla Force came
very late, yet the actual work on Intelligence has started
sometimes in April, 1943 when Major Jose J. de Gusman approach-
ed me and talked about our joining the underground movement.

On August 3, 1943, I presented myself to work at the Osaka
Bazar as clerk (in charge of invoice) under the advise of Ma jor
Jose J. de Guzman to be undercover man of the Guerrilla Forces
in obtaining informations.

On August 28, 1943, I took command of the 3rd Battaliom,
5th Regiment until November of 1943 due to the arrest of my
Battalion Commander, Major Jose J. de Guzman by the Japanese
Military Police. Despite the arrest of Major Guzman, reports
regarding the activities of the Japs had been reaching my
Headquarters. And before the inauguration of the Republic of
e Republd/c /f the Philippines under puppet President, Jose
Laurel on October, 1943, Major Guzman was released from the
custody of the Japs and did not assume his post as Battalion
Commander until late in November of the same year for being
sick, As usual, reports on the enemy activities were coming
in faster than we can send them out,

In was also in November, 1943, when I organized a Guerrilla
Unit under my command composed of some drivers and laborers of
the Osaka Bazar.for the purpose of knowing more informations
about the enemy as the drivers andunlaborers of the Osakas Bazar
were often doing works for the Japanese Navy for the reason
that the Vice-President of the Osake Bazar wes in charge of
the shipbuilding yard in the city and in Malabonm, Rizal and
also that of the Ammonia Gas Factory and Nipil Iron Works which
were operated by the Osake Bazar under the direct supervision
of the Japanese Navy. And it was through the work of these men
that made me acquainted with all the activities of the Japanese
in the city that were directly or indirectly have connection
with the said Osaka Bazar.

On the night of 15 April 1944, two (2) of my men at the
Osaka Bazar, Sgts. Gregorio Gerna and Vicente Caoili forced
opened the back door of the Osaka Bazar Bodega near the Pasig
river and spilled the contains of 5 drums of gasoline on the
ground, 3 barrels of soy which was mistaken for oil, and 2
drums of lubricating pil.

On the 16th of February 1944, barely 4 months after Ma jor
Jose J. de Guzman was released from Fort Santiago, he was again
arrested by the Japanese Military Police, and as usual I con-
tinued the work committed to the 3rd Battalion until his release
on June, 1944,

Effective May 1, 1944, Major Jose J. de Guzman was relieved
of his command, end I took over the command until my unit was
absorb by the General Headquarters. Nevertheless s/ sropt¥ts
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I continued to transmit my report and my men's report to my
former Battalion Commander who was promoted to the ramk of
Lt. Colonel on the day he was relieved of his command.

On or about the middle 6f April, 1944, I put Sgt. Miguel
Roca Fajardo to work as under cover men at the Malabon Dock
(Shipbullding Yard) as laborer. Few weeks later, Sgt. Fajardo
Teported to me that there is a chance to burn the Malabon Dock
if he could only work at night time, Few days later, I was able
to make arrangement for him to work at night. However, before
his trensfer from day work to night work, I went to kialabon
Dock to see 18 there was really a chance for him to accomplish
what he told me and accordingly planned as to what he should
do. On the night of the 30th of Mey, 1944, the Malabon Dook
was set on fire, destroyed more or less 20 drims of crude oil,
10 drums of gasoline, 200 or more sacks of rice, 2 heavy trucks
and burned the whole machine shop.

work, although what T really found was just the reversev-the -
people were heppy and they wish for more fires in the future o
all Japenese establishments,
b

0n Dovenber]™1944, T left for Pangasinan to evacuate my ‘
femily with the permission of Colomel Jose J. de Guzman,swith
instructions to contect the rest of.the men in Pangasinan, He
himself will take care of the men in Manila. On my arrival in
Pengasinan on December 8, 1944, I started gotn eround tho boys
in Sen rabien, Dagupan, Lingayén snd Celaslao/and advised them
o stick to their work on sabotage, morale boosting ana collece
ting of informations regarding the ememy that would help in the
work v t. Tn Pangasinen, T
observed carefully the installations, and the movements of
Japenese troops including their erms, ammunition and supply. T
even sent out some of my men to Urdanets, Pangasinan, purposely
o wateh the movement of foot-troops as the town of Urdaneta
links all the roads going to all directions, while I stayed in
a house near the railroad station in Calasido, Pangasinan to
observe the ememy movement by train. Observation reports gathered
are as follows: rrom December 10th to the 23rd day of December,
1944, xim enemy troops of considerable number were moving day
and night from the morth towards south fully packed together
with all kinds of arms including big guns, and all btypes of tanks.
Horse-drawn vehioles were also used in great mumber by those who
walked their way along the road, Traing gron the morth were all
loaded with soldiers including big gunisfany covered wagons pro-
bebly containing big weapons the Japs d1dA't want the people. to
see. The train mekes more or less 7 to 8 trips daily strickly
for militery men. All these informations together vith the
ports of my men in San Fabian and Lingayen, Pangasinan with re-
gards to the preparations made by the Japs along the shored lime
and all that I have seen on my way to Pangesinan when I left
Manila on December 7, 1944, specially the big guns and machine
gun emplacements all'along the National road from Manmila to
Dagupen, Pangasinan, and all eround the hills near the Bamban
bridge were reported back to the oity thru my officer, Captain
Toribio R, Perez who was given expliclt instructions by me to
transmit the informations I gathered from the enemy. When Capts

Te-
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Toribio R. Perez returned to Calasiao where I was stayi.

he brought me the news from Colonel Jose J, de Guzmanyal;se;ting
all men under my command. As usual, movement of enemy troops
was heavy long the National road and thru the train, On January
1, 1945, I was surprised to find out that the movement of enemy
troops was just the reverse. Instead of moving towards the south
the soldiers including those who walked their way and those that
took the train were moving towards the north, bringing with them
the same arms and ammunition and supplies with them., These heavy
movement of enemy troops day and night continued until the 7th
day of January, 1945, 2 days before the landing of the American
Forces at Lingayen, San Fabian and Dagupan. On the eve of the
Americen landing at Daguapn, some of the boys although they

were poorly equipped for the reason that they have only 2 riflss
with them, they exchanged fire with the Japs spies at Dagupan
which caused the wholesale retreat of the Japs in the place.

On January 9, 1945, between 4 and 5 o'clock in the after-
noon, I with Lt., Macario Miranda, and 3 enlisted men, Leonardo
Aranas, Epifanio de Armes and Francisco Joves went to Dagupan
to meet the landing party, and we met their advance guards on
the way riding in big tanks, and told them that Calasiao is
free from the Jeps. That very afternoon, the infantry men oc-
cupied the strategic places in Calasiao specially the road goimg
to Sta. Barbara where the Japs retreated the night before. ror
4 days, I have acted as guide and informer with regards to the
whereabouts of the Japs in the vieinity, after which time I
went to San Fabian to report for duty being a Captain in the
Regular Philippine Army and have fought in Bataan. In San
#abien, I presented myself to the Provost Mershal, Lt., Colonel
Jobn B, Mueller for duty and explained to the Colonel that
aside from being a Captain in the Regular Philippine Army, I em
also a guerrilla officer of the Fil-American Irregular Troops
under Col. Hugh Straughn, and have some important informations
to tell regarding the enemy, ILmmediately, Col., John B, Mueller
took me to Major Mckoy for interview and later I was taken to
the office of the CIC for further interview. I stayed almost
the whole day at the CIC office nerrating all what I know and
all that I have seen the Japs had been doing that would help
the American rorces, including the recent movement of Japanese
troops towards the south and later towards the north.Although,
I wes not yet officially taken in for work, I was already re-
porting daily to Lt. Colonel Mueller like the rest of the men
actually working in the Provost MaBshal Office, until January
21, 1945 when I was made the Commanding Officer of the USAFFE
detachment whom I have rmEmkked recruited to work as Beach
Petrol under the guidance of Captain R. L. Griffin, C.M.P.
which work we performed to the expectation of the man that put
ue to work., On or about the 15th of Fenruary, 1945 with the
seme men under my command, we were made to guard the 577th
frd. Ammunition Depot under Cept. William E. Nickles at Rabon,
La Union. As Beach Patrol, it was the duty of the USAFFE de-
tachment under my command to clear the landing places off
civilians. And it was also ou¥ duty to guard the supply dumps
along the beach tp prevent any civilien or Japanese get closer
to the place to evade sabotage or pilfering. Although, I was
not required to patrol et night, I used to go out at night
with 3 or 4 of my men for the purpose of alerting my men on
their posts. As guards of the 577th Ord. Ammunition Depot, I
have to with my Junior Officers and men do some patroling
beyond the outposts in the mountains to EXmxm clear out Japs
if there are any in the vicinity of the Ammunition Depot.

On 7 March 1945, I wes pulled out by Captain Griffin from
the 577th Ord. Ammunition Depot to help Lt. Col., A. H, Miller
of the 172nd Finance Disbursing Sec. in putting up his office
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t‘;t];e&z%éa for the reason that I, being an old timer in the
TEconTd at the same time a guerrilla officer in the city,
e more or Z!.ess do something which the majority of the
Tn gh °,f Pangasinan could do if they were taken in my place.
i € Finence office, I worked as checker and helped greatly
D equipping the office with the necessary office equipment
and the hiring of trusted persomnel to work with the said 1
office“until I finally decided to resign on April 15, 1945
after I hed contact with my Guerrilla Headquarters (GHQ) on
April 11, 1945, And since then, I devoted my time in going
around checking the activities of my men with the aim of
attgaching them all to the American Forces now fighting in the
Philippines with the hope that they should be made a part of
the ¥ilipino soldiers that may be used in the invasion of

Tokyo, the dreams and desires of all the people of this part
of the world, >

At present, I am the Assistant Adjutant General (GHQ)
FAIT in the reorganized roster of the Central Genral Staff

submitted to the Commanding General, USAFFE, Apo 501 on
June 30, 1945,

Attached are true copies of my crédentials pertaining
to the work I have done as USAFFE Captain with the American
Forces when they landed in Pangasinan.

/ FE Ii(gs ‘\';EBWK/ 08 %o

LT. COL. AGD, FAIT
Asst., Adjutant Gf}ﬁal



Mr. Jose de Guzman
Valenzuela ST.
3 Bat . S5th. Reg. ILAW (USPIF)

I have turned in my report to Guerrilla Hqgts.
¢/o Lt. Rogers 152 PB & DBa Rear Area. As per orders, I
gained recognition for PQOG 46th Reg. 45 Div. Lt. Col.
Laurel., Arms & munitions were issued.

I have tried to contact you, for continuation of
our S-2, please send me a note, & my appointment papers
as of Feb., 1, 1944,

We have inflicted in combat 14 Japs & 1 Spy killed.
Right now I am waiting for any further instructions.

I hope & pray you and yours are all well & safe.
SGD CHARLES ARMSTRONG

Allas, CRISTOBAL
35-5-2 - ITAW

P. S. Thru courtesy of friend

ROBERT HARRIS.
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THE PHILIPPINES

FORCES
BNERAT, HEADQUARTERS
FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS

Philippines

UNITED STAT
G

Manila, 15 July 1945

Subject: PERSONAL HISTORY AND REPORT OF ACTIVITIES OF
JOSE J. DE GUZMAN, COLONEL, FAIT

To : The Commanding Gener.al
USAFFE, APO 501

Thru : Gen. J. M, BAYS, Commanding General, FAIT

1. Being a Reserve Officer in the U, S. Army, ASN 0278133,
I have never lost sight of my responsibility as such and of the
oath I have taken. In view thereof, it is on record that I have
offered my ser¥ices to the colors as early as August of 1941
when I noted the tremendous preparation then being made; ready
and willing to sacrifice my financial interests and excellent
business positions at that time, not to mention the well-being
of my family.

2. Because of a Cebtificate of Capacity for the grade of
Captain, QMC, which I have held since 1938, I received a letter
from the Adjutant General, HPD, that I was to be promoted to
Captaincy effective October 31,1941, if a vacancy existed.
Certainly, such vacancy existed then. However, I did not receive
the promotion. Notwithstanding this, I was not in the least dis-
couraged, and fired by enthusiasm and willingness to be of some
service to the cause for which the supreme efforts were being
waged then, and are still being waged by the Democracies, and
being loyal to my oath, altho I have not received official orders
due possibly to the then existing confusion, T presented myself
and volunteered to serve in my rank on December 28, 1941, at a
time when Manile was being evacuated, disregarding the risks
which my act entailed and the conseguences attendent to the sec-
urity and welfare of my family which necessarily had to be left
behind, as well as my financial snd business interests which were
also left in jeopardy.

3. On the day I reported to Col. Frank Brezina, Dept. QM,
whose office was then located at San Beda College, I was outfitted
for Field Duty and ordered to proceed that same morning to Bataan,
as OIC of convoy, reporting upon arrival at Bataan to Lt. Col. O.
Harwood, then QM Bataen Forces. L was on duty in Bataan under Lt.
Col. Harwood, in command of the Department QM Labor Pool and As-
sistant to Executive Officer of the OIC Gasoline and Oil Distri-
bution, until the surrender. I was & member of the"death march" to
Camp O'Donnell, Capas, Tarlac, wherein I was interned as P. W.

4, I waes among those released on parole from Capas on July 2,
1942, as sick prisoner., Since my release, L have been under the
medical treatment of Dr., Ocampo up to the early part of February,
1943,

5. I did not stop there, however, for even as early as
October, 1942, I have been contacted by Col. Abwyen and talked
about the organization of the underground movement to which I
willingly and voluntarily assented. I attended the first meeting
sometime in March 1943, of the Fil-American Irregular Troops,
under Col. Hugh Straughn, No. 02515, USA in the third floor of the
building occupied by the Manila Installment Co; owned and operated
by Col. James Stevenson. At the said meeting, I was commissioned
with the rank of Major with authority to organize and command the
Third Battalion, Fifth Regiment, South Central Luzon Sector. I did
not receive my actual appointment until June, 1943 when I was
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sworn-in accordingly. The History of the activities of this Unit
is attachdd hereto as Inclosure No. 1.

6. Unfortunately, after the arrest of Col. Hugh Straughn, T
was arrested along with many others of the FAIT members on August
21, 1943, and confined at the F, E. U. compound for 40 days. On
September 29,1943, I was released in skeleton form over my former
self, I shall not attempt to dwell upon the bestiality of the
Japanese Military in connection with the treatment accorded to
prisoners charged with subversive acts, as this is a well known
fact. After this release, I have been under the medical care of
Dr. B. Sto. Domingo.

7. During my confinement, and up to about the end of November,
1943, my Executive Officer, then Captain Felix R. Gabat, took
active command of the Battalion. The Officers and men of my former
Unit were active in their usual assignments, as can be noted from
the History of the Command. However, whatever information gathered
had accumulated in the meantime. When I took over the command, I
found that the usual contact had been lost and, in view of the
uselessness of reports if they did not reach the authority concerned,
I endeavored with utmost care to make connections.

8. Contact was made possible during the latter part of December,
1943, thru the late Capt. Braganza, who used to frequent at the
house of his neighbor, one Mr. Thos. I. Weeks, No. 10 J, Ruiz, San
Juan, where I also used to make calls; Mr., Weeks, being a long
standing friend and business associate., The late Capt. Braganza then
put me in touch with the late Maj. Ildefonzo Fernandes (alias Maj.
Hocson) who was the Liaison Officer of the Sixth Military District.
The intelligence reports of my unit were, therefore, submitted in
the meantime thru Maj. Fernandez whom I assisted in every way I
could. On February 1, 1944, I appointed Capt. Charles W, Armstrong,
Jr. as additional S-2 of my Unit, particularly to assist on some
special information required by Maj. Fernandez.

9. I was prevailed upon to allow Maj. Fernandez to use my
home as his Headquarters after the latter had made futile attempts
to rent a space for that purpose. Col. Stevenson was approached by
me as a last resort to use one of the rooms in his house, but in
view of the sickness of Mrs. Stevenson, my wife willingly consented
to the use of our home forgetting her security as well as my safety
in view of the importance of the work then being undertaken, Fur-
thermore, Maj. Fernandez was sickly at the time and needed care,
as he had just come from the mountains. Our plans were to leave
after 10:00 A. ii, on February 16, 1944, to contact Naj. Philips
(then known to operatives in Manila as "Milk of Magnesia®) who was
then located somewhere in Mindoro, following two of Maj. Hocson's
staff who had left the day previous. However, my house was raided
by Jap. M. Ps. at the unholy hour of 2:00 A. M. on the scheduled
date of our departure, resulting in my arrest as well as the arrest
of Maj. Fernandez, (Maj. Hocson). This arrest entailed a confime-
ment in Fort Santiago (Cell No. 16) of 105 days. I was miraculously
released on June 1st, 1944, but to date Maj. Fernandez is missing.
I am led to believe that my release was due to ny non-implication
by lMaj. Fernandez as pre-arranged by us in the event something hap-
pened, and who apparently owned the guilt. I have been under the
medical care of Dr. Casas after this release.

10. By some fortunate circumstences after my release, I met
one of the original orgenizers of the FATT in the person of Col.
Pablo N. de la Cruz (a2lias Col, Crosby), who informed me that he
had promoted me, relived me of my Command and assigned me to work
with him, I ha®dly functioned with him, nevertheless, due to my
weakened condition, except for some intelligence reports I submitted
to him from my command,

11. Sometime in August, 1944, I met Col. B, S. Araullo (alias
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Gen. J, M, Bays) who acquainted me with the succession of the FAIT
Command after the arrest of Col. Straughn, and told me that.he

was forming his staff and that he needed me. Col. Araullo was con-
fined in the F. E. U. campus with me on my first arrest. I was not
physical}y fit to undertake any work, but I told him I was willing
to help in any way I could wherever he needed me, Nevertheless, he
must not expect much of me. Whatever information reports I had,
although absolutely "LAY LOW"™ was the policy, were transmitted to
Col. Araullo and, in his absence, to Col. Enrique Rimando (Congress-
men), then Chief of Staff, FAIT.

12, In view of the tension in December, 1944, and believing
that landing or landings were imminent on Luzon, I alerted my former
Unit and such of the unit commanders as were within reach. I sent
my former ixecutive Officer, Lt. Col. Felix R. Gabat, to the North
(Pangasinan), with the mission to contact all FAIT men with definite
instructions to continue harassing the enemy at every opportunity,
and wherever possible to attach themselves to any Unit in the event
the Zero hour came. As a result of this, members of my former Unit
have done commendable work in Pangasinan, Lt. Col. Gabat with FAIT
officers and men were the first to contact the first unit of the
American Forces of Liberation that landed in Lingayen and San
Fabian (see Incls. 1 and 2). I also sent Captain Charles W. Armstrong
Jr. to Batangas, at his:csuggestion, on a mission to organize even
a small unit there. His mission was a failure due to circumstances
mentioned in his reports (see Incls. 3 and 4). Not contented with
this, I again sent him there after the landing in Lingayen and at
the same time took the opportunity to evacuate his family to some
part in Batangas. However, I did not hear anymore from Captain
Armstrong, Jr. until after the liberation of Manila when he came to
see me and informed me that it was not possible for him to come
back because he was picked up by the PQOG Unit and commissioned
him as Hajor attached to the 1lth Mirborne. Major Armstrong had
since then been reclassified and is now serving in his rank, attached
with the Procurement Section of the USASOS.

13. After the liberation of Manila, altho still slightly "Under
the weather®, and believing it was my duty to return to Military
control, I made attempts to report on February 19, 1945 to the CIC
and the XTI Corps as EX-BATAAN PERSONNEL. Since I was ordered to
proceed to Calasiao, and being physically unable to do so, I re-
quested that I be allowed to report later. I actually reported to
the 5th Replacement Depot at Alabang on March 31, 1945, and was
there assigned to the 283rd Replacement Co. until the P8 Detachment
arrived in that camp on April 16, 1945, to which latter organization
I was transferred.

14, I served (unattached and unassigned) in the said PS Det-
achment as S-3 and Acting Executive under Colonel E. B, Dalao,
CAC, USA, Commanding the Detachment, until I completely cleared
myself from there on May 31, 1945, upon the advise of Colonel Bunker
to return to my Guerrilla Outfit, for the time being, and work for
its recognition, which I am doing now, having been assigned since
April 15, 1945, as AC of S, G-2 of the Gentrjl General Staff which
was to function until the overall Comfland of/the FATIT was recognized,
and now as Adjutant General, GHQ=FA] £ e reorganized Central
General Staff under General J.

FOYES DE G

(Mias J.G. Ilaw)

Colonel, AGD,

(ASN, 0278135)
S
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Mateh—4et] 1945
c/o llth., A.B., Rear Ech

SUBJECT: Report on History of
C.W.Armstrong Jr.
Capt. 3rd. Bat. 5th. Reg.
2 Fil-American Irregulars

TO: Carl F. Rogers lst, Lt. C.A.C.
Guerrilla Hgs., Rear Area

1l: On Beb. 1lst , 1944 the undersigned was approached by
lst. Lt. Jose J. De Guzman of the U.S. Army Q.M.C., and was to-
1d by him that my services w ere needed in a patriotic cause.

On my willingness to serve I was given the rank of Captain, in
S-2 of the 3rd. Bat. 5th, Reg., Southern Central Luzon Irregular
forces.

2: Aside from general intelligence work I was given
the mission of securing a Roster of American Prisoners of war,
in the Sto. Thomas Internment Camp, and a list of those prisoners
supplying such information to our Australia contact. I campleted
the mission.

3: Following orders, when my C.0. was taken in for
the second time by the Jap Gestapo, ®ll activities, papers and
dbhBr incrimineting evidences w ere done away with. I narrowly
missed arrest.

4: Upon his miraculous release I volunteered another
mission. Which was to organize wherever pessible the groups
of small independent guerrillas roaming at large the area around
Teal Leke in Batangas. I rurned in the report that the groups
I had encountered in a months time were reneged®- or just too
wild for us to risk the process.

5: After the 1llth. Airborne had taken Tegaytay kidge, I
had opportunity to ebserve good work done by the P.Q.0.G.
guerrillas of the 46th, Reg. 45th. Div. under the command of
Lt. Col. Laurel, who among many other good acts, killed a group
of Japanese, fourteen in number and some spies. He and his men
also took over the town of Talisay below &he Ridge.

6: On Beb. 1llth, 1945 Col. Laurel and one platoon of Guerrilas
accompanied me thru the Jap lines for seven or eight miles, and
we contacted the U.S., Forces. Upon my meeting lajor Vanderpool
U.S. Army, of the Guerrilla Forces, I was able to secure for this
gooup their initial recognition, an official assignment, some
arms, ammunition &and medical supplies. They are at this date act-
ive under Cgptain Schomer on Tagaytay Ridge.
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7: On Beb. 12th, they acted as advance guard for one platdon
under Lt. Hibner of the 19th. Combat Team, who were sent down
the Tagaytay Ridge up till the Volcano Island in the middle of the
Taal Lake, to rescue our party of American women and children.

8: An American citizen, I look forward to repatriation of my
wife and wwo children to the United States, and submit this rep-
ort for the record.

SGD CHARLES W. ARMSTRONG Jr.
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SUMMARY OF WHAT I DID DURING THE JAPANESE OCCUPATICN

June 28, 1945

When the Japanese army occupied the City of Manila in
January 2, 1942, I went to report to the office of The Hale
Shoe Compeny, Inc., at Canonigo Street, paco, where I was then
employed as & Billing Clerk. We were all told to go home, and
since then I helped ny, %ge at the Bustillos Market selling mis-
cellaneous foodstuff we§ 0 buy from Divisoria Markeyevery morning.
We continued doing this thing in order to earn our livelihood,
most specially we had to support eight children. We did this with
the help of our bigger boys, and in July, 1943, I thought of join-
ing the guerilla, together with two of my boys, Vlcente and Cesar.
In July 16, 1943, I had been commissioned First Lieutenant in the
FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS, my son, Vicente, who was then in
the Third Year, High School, when the war broke out in December
8th, 1941, was appointed First Sergeant, and Cesar, a Corporal
I received my commission from Major Jose J. de Guzman, who was
our Batallion Commander;ccommanding the Third Batellion, Fifth
Regiment. Qur Regimental Commender was Lt. Col. Walter Bailey.

My two boys were then Staff Couriers.

After my commission as First Lieutenant, I applied at the
Sta. Nesa slipway, which was under the Japanese Army, to be one
of their Time-Keepers. Right there I started making reports of
what the Japs were doing inside, and what I did to hinder the
progress of their operations. They had exploited the forest
products, specially lumber, which malle them to operate the Finley
& Millar Timber Companysuccessfully. This mber mill is located
next to the Sta. Mesa Slipway where they ma repairs of Japanese
fishing boats. These boats are the auxillary of the Japanese Navy,
and one time I reported that in one of these boats there had been
one whiteman, may be & W.P. Much &s I would like to get in touch
with this man, who, I suppose, was a Doctor, it had all been in
vain, due to the faect that the Japs had always been on close-
watch over what and which ever we did in that compound. I also ;
had reported that at this Slipway, there had been a Welding Dept. |
fully equiped with all modern facilities that the Jeps could manu- |
facture all sized of propellers for the wooden boats they built. |
These boats, I pressumed, had to be used &s sub-chashers as well
as for inter-island operations. They were of the 100 ton class,
and were all painted Navy Blue. There had been & Purchasing Dept. ‘
dealing on all make of motors of from 50 to 100 hp., also secrap
irons, steel plates, steel cables and all kinds of tools and nails.
I also had to report that I organized among my boys, those who were
really very tough guys, to dump into the Pasig River all tools and ‘1
machine parts they could get without being noticed by the Japs, !
also to smaugle those parts of machines very essential to motor-
boats to their outside connectlons so that they could realize some
money out of their dangerous Jobs. They had to smaugle beltings tog
because this item had been very scarce during those days, and be-
sides very costly. The Japs had also exploited labor, and even went
to the extreme of employing small boys of from 10 to 16 years old.
At the slightest suspiclon, they severely tortured laborers, and
one time they had tied up one victem at the gateway and ordered all
the 1700 employees inecluding laborers to slap the face of the poor
fellow and as a result, blaod came out of his mouth, ears and nose.
When we got out that evening, we thought that the man was already
dead.

In August 19, 1943, Major Jose J. de Guzman, our Batallio it
Commander, had been arrested by Japanese M.P., and I had to g
my reports to our Aeting C.0., Capt. Pelix R. Gabat. T had to re-
port that the jJaps had branded me as SPY, together with my co-emplo-
yee, Lt, Alejandro Cenon (P.4.), 8s we used to stay together most
of the time, except when the Japs had been really very hot on us.
One of the Japanese Operatives, who called himself, }R. SATAN, had
been the one very active on us, and that fellow believed that SATAN
%S thotmost powerful on earth and heaven. I had asked him,infront

Captain Tenaka-who created SATAN, and every boday laughed. So
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from that time on I refrained from making some argument with the
seild ur. seten. Even if those Japanese Operatives branded us spies,
Captain Tenaka, who had been the Officer-in-Charge of that compound,
did not believe at all that we had been such. Once these Japanese
Offiecers believe that you are 0.K., they consider you as among the
Filipinos whome they could trust and call them very ve. 00d, up tc
the end. So we had been classified among thoseﬁmﬁﬂ%@
DPloyees in that compound, but in spite of this belief, the Japs
Operatives had been always after us. Whatever we did and wherever
we had been, even eating our lunch, these Japs had been on the close
watch, which forced me to resign in December 31, 1943, without due
formality. I had been lucky emough they did not force me to go baek
and so in January 1944, I had to help my wife at the Bustillos mar-
ket to sell fresh bangus, etc.

As I was then very near San Beda, I had to report all the Japs
movements and what they did in that place. But in February ls,
1944, our Batallion Commander, Major Jose J. de Guzmen, had been
apprehinded the second time by the Japanese M.PSe, and he turned
over the command to Capt. Felix R. Gabat. T had reported to my
Acting Commender that the Japs had been killing Filipino laborers
at san Beda, by cutting off their heads, in groups of three and
sometimes five at a time, The Japgnese executioner had to kick the
bodies of these victems to their graves prepared by themselves.

This procedure had been very often done at that place. T had to
report also that right at those newly constructed bodegas at the
back of san Beda, the Japs had been dumping foodstuff, etc. I had
to stay at the Bustillos Market with my wife up to March 1944, and
in &pril I was able to work at the OSAKA SODA, Grace park, thru the
kindness of Captain Felix R. Gabat, my &cting C.0s I had to report
that we had been manufecturing AMMONIA GAS, which had been very
essential to the Japanese Navy. MAside to this product, we had to
manufacture CAUSTIC OF SODA, CRUDE OIL &ND LOW GRADE OF GASCOLINE.
The Japanese Navy had to supply that factory with ammonia Sulpbate,
Copra Cakes, Bones of all kinds of animals, lime, etc. The Japs had
also been buying water pipes, steel plates and steel cables. I only
stayed at that factory up to August 1944, and when T left T had to
g0 to the province to get some rice supply for ny family, and at
the same time had to report to my C.0. what T saw in those trips.

I had to report to him that the Japanese had their Headwuarters at
Binalonan, Pangasinan, which is the next town to my home town,
asingan, The Japs at Binalonan had often times molested all the
people in the barrios, including Tuboy, my home. My old folks had
told me, and I had to report to my C.0. 8lso, that these Japs had
to get anything they wanted, such as hens, eggs, hogs, turkey, ducks
and pigs, against the will of the country people.

In geptember Bl and 22, 1944, I had to suspend my going to the
province due to the first bombing of City of Manila, and ny wife and
I had to contend ourselves, with our children eating whatever we had

+ been able to get. But inspite of those hardships, I had to conti-
nue submitting my reports on the Japanese movements. as the japs
had been very vary hot on guerilias in the City in November and
December, 1944, I was forcded to take my whole family to my home town
Asingan, pangasinan. It was December 8,when we left the City, and
arrived in Tuboy, Asinggn, December 10th. While there, I had to
meet several Combat Units of the Guerillas under 1@ jors Ramsey and
lapham, and had to feed them often, with the help of all my relative:
I had to identify myself to them, because they had been very suspe-
clous, most specially towards City people. The fact that I was
borned and brought up in that barrio, they did not continue to ques-
tion my identity. We had to work together, and early in January,
1945, when the Americans landed in San Fabian, or say two days be-
fore the landing, this guerilla unit had to destroy the communica-
tion lines in and around that barrio, and was suceessful in killing
three Japs and a Constabulary man passing by just the night before
the 1;:1?!.1.1:%{l el

en the gpearhead of the United States sixth Army reached our
barrio, we had %o help them, by telling the locations of Japanese
soldiers who were left behind in their retreat towards san Menuel
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and one early mornin
thr o € When the Americans were already at Binalonan,
cow:? gﬁ;nggerirgcks loaded with soldiers forced their way to that
ficer, who was agl Olét that all of them were killed, except one Of~
our familjeg o @ toescape to the fields where we had evacuated
trucks, ang {:he aWG had to tell to'a G.I. passing by in one of the
people’around th P was shot. After the Jap was killed, the old
cher the that place, together with the yound ones, had to but-
Jap with their bolos, due probably to their revenge on what
theseﬁJﬂPS had done to them.
it gftur the United states Army Forces had reached the town of
roadg R, we had to return to our houses locatéd along the provincial
Sk and while there, the 340 Engineer Corp, Company C, had to in-
up &t Tuboy, first along that road connecting Urdaneta and Tuboy,
and then they transferred to a place near the Tuboy River, close to
the Provincie}l Road, where the school house is located. We had to
Teport to this Corp (Company C) that, on our belief, there were some
Jepanese soldiers around, because we found Shoe prints very different
to what the American soldiers! shoes. Besides, some corn fields in
our parrio had been out of their ears, due to the fact that the Jap
soldiers had been eating them raw, together with camotes and eggplant:
Then one night, they assigned a night patrol with some guerilla com-
bat unit, and had been successful of killing five out of the seven
Japs in that place. Every now and them, we had to report to the 340
Engineering Corp, Company G, of the presence of Japanese Snipers.

In the early part of April, 1945, I had to leave my family in
the province, and had to come to the City to find out as to whether
my home had been destroyed by fire or shellings. Thank God, the
Ablmighty%bthg;y home was not destroyed, and I had to get my femily

ack to the - %

After arriving in the City, I had to contact my Commanding Of-
ficer, Colonel Jose J. de Guzman, at San Juan, Rizal, and he told me
that the General Headquarters of the FIL-AMERICAN IRREGULAR TROOPS
would soon be reorganized, and so it was. I am then included in the
General staff, to take charge of the Postal Section. 1

\
\
\
|

Respectfully

suEmitted,
‘ﬂ__, Iﬁ .

JAN D, CAOILI
Capteain - F.A.I,T.
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Luzon, Fil-American Irregular Forces

120 Blumentritt, San Juan
Manila 3
23 March 45

SUBJECT: Report on history of Mr. Mencarini

: U. S, Army, CHQ - G2

l. For the record this report is submitted attesting to
the willingess to serve, desfiite personal danger and self
sacrifice, of a Lady not a National of the United States.

TO

2. On Feb. 8th, 1943 Mrs. Mencerini was contacted by a
member of the above Juerrilla Unit. Lt. J. Hernandez, a offi-
cer in the Philippine Army, veteran of Bataan and former aide-
de camp to General Pierce. Under instruction of Captain'C.,
Armstrong, Lt. Hernandez approached Mrs. Mencarini and request-
8d help be given us in carrying out a mission. Which mission
was to secure for our base a complete roster of all enterneesg
in Sto Thomas Enterment Camp.

3. Mrs, Mencarini is famous for her aid to American
Interness during the Japanese Occupation, and she was the only
person on the outside, who had acess to such records. Mrs.
Mencarini, unhesitatingly agreed to help obtain the desised
information.

4. After a period of time had elapsed, Mrs. Mencarini
with help of a Mr. Duggelby, succeeded in obtaining a list of
Internees, despite the fact tha t such a list was guarded in-
formation jealously kept by the Japanese.

5. Mrs. Mencarini was closely watckhed, long suspicioned
by the Japanese as being intensely pro-American, and active in
the underground supply line to Sto. Thomes. She continued in
her activities t o help the American Prisoners, and disregarded
warnings by the undersigned that she was an the "List".

6. This Lady was killed together with her innocent husband,
and Mr. Duggelby and other Americans active in underground work,
by the Japanese Military police.

Sy 1500

amy

@@KGW Aropny

7. Mrs. Mencerini leaves two sons, who are at present
staying at Sto. Thomas, It is requested that recognition be
given for service rendered, and any possible aid to these two

sons.
Submitted by:

(sep) c. w. ARMSTRONG, Jr.
Captain g-2,
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PiRSONAL CirCUMSTANCES

1. NAms = Toribio R. Perez
2, Age - 38 yrs., (a) Date of Birth - April 5, 1907).

3. Bonafide Residence,
Basista, San Carlos, Pangasinan, P. I.

4, Nationallty - Filipino.
5. Civil Status - Married.

6. Beneficiary - Pilar G. Perez.
(Relation - Wife)

7. No. of Dependants - Eight (8)
8, No, of Children - Five (5)

9., Educational Attaintment:
(a) Intermediate Graduate - 1925
Beyambang Elemtary School,
Bayambang, Pangasinan,

(b) High School Graduate - 1929
National University (Night Traeining Dept.)
Manila.

(c) FOURTEEN (14) years employed under
Transportation Department, Manila Railroad Co.,
1928-1941 (Dec. 24, 1941) as:

1, Signalman
2, Clerk - Freight & Lxpress
outgoin g or incoming. -
3. Telegraph Operator
4, Ticket Seller
5. Relief as Clerk, Operetor
and Station Master.
6. Station Master (passing the examination
with honors)

10. Finished Typewriting Course - 1935 ‘
Gregg Business College, Manila, Philippines. :

11, ¥inished "Salesmanship" under
Business Management Course, I.'C. S. Training ‘
Scranton, Pha., U. S. A., at Manila, Philippines. ?

12, Associate in Arts - 1941
Arellano Law College, Manila, Philippines.

13, Commissioned as 1lst Lieutenant July 17, 1943,
3rd Bn. 5th Regt., Fil-American Irregular Troops
under Col., Hugh Straughn, USA, 02515.

14, Promoted to Captain Oct. 19, 1944, by J. M. BAYS

Commanding of the Fil-American Irre/gular Troops,
now assigned in the GHQ - Gaé > 7

— “TORIBLU R. PEKEZ =)

Capt., (FAIT)
GHQ, -
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HISTOKY OF MY ACTIVITLSS DUKING THS JAPANESE
AMINTSTRATION N TAS PHILLDETNG JoLANLS

Prior to the entbreak of the war in the Philippines,
I was employed in the Transportation Depart ment of the i
nila Railroed Goapany bince 1920. iy comnection in tho

on Dec. 24, en the station of Dage-
pan, was closed under the e Gept. Gallop, U. S.
Zrnj Laiason oticer of the henile Hailroad

Dec. 16, 1941, desirous to serve my country, I pre-
sentedmyself voluntarily to a PA Officer incharge of volun-
toers fron the different toms of Pamgssinen, Unluoklly I vas
not giv y for thevery reason that in the
Transpertation Departueny my services wers very imporiant

in the compeny then to join the ar:

round the middle part of December 1941, all railroad

uble,
, vere tranJit(CL to th

n of the GHQ of the USA!

hat Tealizing s

going
Rees feelted vob to attillatecwith then. Not Tong efter shis,
the orgenization was desolved.

ing 1942, I was twice called by a Japanese Capt. Jungo,
at Jagkpan station, to return to Y
ning to cut my neck if I fail to subm
roLs s ituation I managed to escepe with my fe
g

o that, since Dec. 24, 1941, Gate, T never st comnsoted
in the rallroad, Reasons as bo why I failed to return b
former service after the landing of the American Liberating
forces on this shores can be noted below,

o July 17, 1843, I ws comnigsioned es 1st Lisutemant
b y Col, Jose Gagnan, Commanding Officer of the Srd, BN.
5th-Reginent ot the ¥ TL-AMERICAY THREGULAR FR0PS, under G
0R16, Th, ols Folis K: Gabal, was then
Sx0oatiye birioes B wes lnstrached &ras
cent-rate my works on "Intelligence Vork" such as
sabotage, counteract aneny propagandas, telling the 106 and

£ the Japanese military e installations,

o put to an.end of the work of the guerrildas by zomi-
fication.




o it L A

o7
et T got the oppostuntity to go near the
epemr e Eebelrs SHLET R D O e,
& 1int ‘snnnﬂ a( causing hxm-gu. on ser aali

k %o the aidale of

Gabas, who was in’that place worl
sig delivered ofort » asd acsivitie
51 Jose 7. de Guzuan, 8t San Juan, Rizal.
o dandsoe o

o1y atter £ the Anericen Liberating
e advined | mvs,

Betere avay

Fangastnan,

the cementiy of Basista Intependent Church, around 100 Japs




Lers retreating fran the et Westos
ore Totreatiae f30h Hiitea ainort hait an nur, Tae
g o e e wast leaving 5 or more dead body
and slnost all of bt
Sons.of eTaR were.givenmumy by an

$0"%ne olvilians wao Wemt to the spot.

op Nerch 1045, 1 contesten =y former Go. &t San
“for instrussione, o 5 glving nic mmman

Lantiay T vorked snd
(@G, of ho PIL-AL REGULAR T
o e (b ) ahias 8

TORTSTO
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SUMMARY REPORT OF INFORMATION (VERBAL AND YRITTEN) FUR-
NISHED THE HEADQUARTERS ,FIL-AMFRICAN IRREGULARS TROOPS,
COL., HUGH STRAUGHN, COMDG, SOUTHERN-CENTRAL LUZON FORCES,
THROUGE THE EXCUTIVE OFFICER, 3RD Bn, 5TH REGT., FROM
SEPT., 1943 TO DEC, 1944.

«000~

1. Last week, Sept., 1943, in Manila (verbal) =---
Informed the Exmutive Officer, Capt. F.R, Gabat, that:
(1) Five Japanese fishing boats are active in Lingayen Gulf
apparsntly laying mines, although carrying fishing nets,
Actually a couple of these boats were seen from a native
banca lowering a big round object at a point 3 or 4 miles
off the coast of Anda, Pangasinan., That was about the
second wedk of Sept., 1943, (2) Troop movements of Japa-
nese soldiers in Pangasinan were intensified, Their move-
ments were beleived to be in connection with their rotation
of garrison éssignments. (3) Survey of .the mountains in

Rosarlo, La Union, bordering on San Fabian, Pangasinen,
was being undertaken by Japanese engineers.
2. November, 1943, through Runner ----- (1) Japanese

soldiers on forced marches are proceeding irom worthern
Luzon to the western part of Pangasinan by way of Sison,
Pangasinan. Reliable information indiceted that Japanese sol-
diers were making pill boxes along the coastline of Sual,
Pangasinan, (2) Soldiers of the Philippine Constabulary
under the Japanese told me that there was a plan to disarm
all policemikh and constabulary men then, except the officers
and those on guard duty.

(3) February, 1944, through runner ~--=- (1) Japanese
spldiers stationed at Binalonen, Pangesinan, were aufmented.
Strength of units assigned in Eastern Pangasinan was' re-
ported to some three regiments. (2) Japanese soldiers
from Binalonan under an Engineer Officer stayed in San Fab-
ien, Pangasinan, to supervise the construction of pillboxes
along the beachline from east of Bued River to a point
about 3 kilometers from feblong, Mabilao, San Fabian,
Pillboxes were made of light material like bamboos and z
some pieces of wood and by civilians drafted to forced labor.

4, June, 1944, through runner----(1) Japanese sola
diers have been occupying strat@gic hills in San Febian
towar@s Rosario. Civilians in Sen Fabian have been recruited
to construct and work on pillboxes and barracks in the hills.
Pillboxes have been camouflaged with plants like cemote,
corn, ocassava, etc, grown on top. (2) Japanese officers have
been coming from Rosario, La Union, to San Febian, Pangas¢nan
to buy food_stuffs, like fish and vegetables at practically
nominal prices., Civilians hid their products.

— b,icLZ\ssnim%
| Authonty MDGELTe -




5. July, 1944, through runner----- (1) civilian laborers
Tecruited by Japanese officers say that a tunnel was being
constructed in the mountains of Rosario, La Union, that Rails
removed from the former MRR line from San Fabian to Binday
have been transported there. From this,ex-soldiers of the
Philippine Army aad working as laborers they say that bi
guns will be set up in the tunnel. (2) A net-work of trfi@ls
was being made in the mountains of San Fabian and Rosario
up to Sison, then to the mountain provinces. (3) Amy cloth-
ing iﬁgéms were being loadd4d in trucks from Damortis and
brought to Rosario in the supply dumps placed or set up taeere.
Food iupplies and ammunitions were also being stored in
Rosario.

6. September, 1944, through Bunner--- About twenty
(280} Japanese freightersappeared in Lingayen ‘Gulf during
the first two (2) weeks of September, 1944, apparently
evading some subs¥ged craft outside the gulf. They appeared
in the Afterncg&, sometimes 8 or 6 in number, and then leave
early in theﬁmorﬂing at about 2:00 0'clock.

7. October, 1944, through runner —---(1) Japanese planes
presumably twin-engined medium bombers, were regularly flying
over San Fabian from north to south direction, mostly in
groups of nins (9) to eighteen (18) Seldom have planes of
this type been seen flying the opposite direction, (2) mwo
Japenese medium bombers made & forced landings at the
beach in San Fabian, apparently due to lack of gesoline,
0il was seen plenty,

-000-

I certify that the above informations were trans-
mitted by me to the Excutive Officer§ Capt. F. R. cabat,
Inf, 3rd Bn.,58htInf,, Fil-American Irregularsp Southern-
Central Luzon Forces, during the pericds indicated, after
my appointment as Intelligence Officer on or about August
22, 1943,

CHcardy fA farocs.
EDUARDO M, GARCIA
1st Lieut,,Inf

I certify td have received the above information
from 1st Lieut., E.M.Garcia, Inf, who was acting as my in-
telligence officer in the northern part of Central Luzon,

FELIX R. GABAT
- Capt.Inf
Ex-Officer
3rd Bn,5th Tnf
Fil-American Forces

i ECLASSIFIED
i
|
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e con.f‘erence with him, he “pvmlr\ted

ces of the Fil-American T

A Hilitery Organizetion, Afte
£ Hivitiegs-

DECLASSIFIED

ot, 1945:- I visited zll towns end places where Japanese Garrisons were es-
teblished and after studying well the conditions of each Jap- Garrison, I prepared
a sketch map indicaeting the correct places of dach Garrison, the number of arms &
soldiers of each garrison and also the means of transportation by which the garri-
son could be reached,;then submitted it to my Executive Officer, Capt. Gabat;

Nov, 1943:- Rumors disclosed thgt two large size Japanese ships were syid to
be sinking in the Gulf of Linzason, To verify the rumor I went to the beach and I
saw two ships wrecked sbout two miles away from the shores of San Fabian, Viewing
the position of the wrecked ships you will not doubt to say that they were either
hit by sea mines or hit by a bomber somewhere in the pacific waters. The following
morning I visited again the beach to see other developments and the shores from
the town of San Fabian up to Demortis could be seen with boxes of Japa_nese Army
Supplies. On the same day, the two ships were rescued by another pair of ships that
came from the north and were pulled to harbor mnear the shores of Bamortis.

| Authority WD QTOTD
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Jan, 1944:- Japanese Officers coming from Cemp Dau are frequently coming to
all municipalities in Pengasinan compelling the Mayors to give sbout 50 laborers
from each of theit respective municipalities to work in the Air Base Project at
Deu, Pampange. Mayors and other public officials were threatemed to be pusiished for
non-cooperation for failure to comply with the order. The Prov. Governor and the P,
C. 6fficers has also sent orders to all Mayors instructing them abide with said or-
der;

Feb, 1944:- Grape-vine news and rumors disclosed that American Forces are near-
ing the Pacific waters., Japanese Authorities are this time busy building pill-boxes
along the sea coast of Lingayen, Dagupan, San ‘ebien and as far as Damortis, Le Union.
The Japs ordered the liayors of Sen Febian, San Jacinto, and Mengaldan to give labo-
rers to work in the project. The Mayors were very indefferent to the order for the
reason that they will not be given food., The Japanese Officers got mad and gave an
order for the second time punishing severely anybody as a result for non-compliance.
About 300 men are working in the said project;

March 1944:- Nine battleships appeated in Lingayen Gulf, They stayed there for
almost three days and three nights and afterwards left for the north, According to
some of the Japanese Soldiers who were patrolling near the beach said battleships
ceme from New Guinea to deliver war materials end supplies in the Philippines

May 1944:- Rumors about the presence of American Battleships in the Pacific,
Fishermen from Sen Fabien testified of mmiw appearances of several submarines of
the U, S. Navy while they are out in the sea fishing, I advised'yno to tell to any-
body what they have seen. A wcek after the Menila Railroad Co. issued an order to
the effect that civilians could not ride the train., Long trains from the North
passed three times a day towards the south fully loaded with Tanks, Trucks and emmu-
nitions of different kinds. The coeches were full of Jap Soldiers, top of said coa-
ches were also full, of soldiers ., Sometimes the train stop at San Fabian to get
water and fuxxEwgimexkrmmiiim and due to engine trouble. Every time the train stops
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I had th§ chence to get near the train and I have seen that sbout helf of all
the soldiers in the train were Taiwans few of them were Koreans. I asked one
‘them where they came from and xhe said they came from Singapore;

June 10443~ About miwmxdmmix Seven Thousand Japs started to occupy the
nearby hills of Sen Jacinto, San Fabian and Rosario, Le Union. They built pill-
boxes along the slopes of the hills and were busy hauling tuck loads of food-
stuffs to be deposited in the hills, Because of the difficulty of tansportetion
in bring their cergo up the hills they forced civilians to carry their things
for them, Any sign of reluctance once called by a Jap to do anything would mean
punishments

July 1944:- About one thousand Japs arrived in San ""abia.n. They occupied the
Celtryl School Building and the Romsn Catholic Church Convent, These Jeps were
thin, pale and sickly. There clothes were torn and dirty. They were hungry too.
Approaching some of them who were roaming around looking for something %o eat,

I asked where they ceme from and told me that they came from Saipen, I have done
this inquiry for several times and they emswered me the same (Saipen)e These sol-
diers rested in San Fabian for three days then proceeded towmrds the south by foote

Auge 1944:- At ebout 11:00 p. m. there was a continuios arrivals of Jeps by
thousands coming from the north., They occupied the Mun. Bldg, Convent, School buil-
dings and elso the big houses near the town, With them is their Gensral named Taka-
nami, According to the soldiers they came from Saipan, After resting for two days
and two nights they moved to the tovm of Sual, Pangasinan on footj

Sept. 1944:- On or ebout the 8th day of Septe 1944, I was investigated by
Japencse Military Police, charging me of comnivance with the guerillas, few days
before this investigation I got in contact with two guerilleros from La Union by
the neme of Jeime Jucutan and Orpilla, Altho I have given them good reasons I
Wys tortured but not so much, Beginning that time the Japs begen to keep strict
vigilance on me, Realizing the dangers of future investigations, I pretended
to be sick and went to Dggupen where I pretended to sick and under treatment in
the Provincial Hospital. It was not long when I got in contact with a guerilla
officer, Lt. Jose Ocampo of fosales, I went with him to Rosales and oitentimes
my mate in the performace of iy work in the Guerilla Forces; i

U Oct, 1944:- I contacted also loises lMayugba, p guerilla member of the La
nion Units to whom I give one rifle and 500 rounds of ammunitions 30 cals, upon
his request that he meed it very badly because his companions gre short of arms;

Dec, 1944:- While I was in Sto. Tomas in the village of Rawis, I saw about 15
U, S. planes raiding Demortis. There was a dogfight near the vallage where I am,
I have seen ebout 3 Jap lanes crushing down the sea belching long lines of smoke
as they crush down the sea, Two small motor boats of the Japs near the sea coast
of Demortis were sunk by direct hits made by the U. S, planes.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:

///7//// et ey
ERPETUO PEPITO ULANDAY
1st. Sgbs Inf. Int, Sects

FELIX R. GABAT
Lt, Cols (FAIT)
B14Bn. 5th Regte
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